
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

**** SMALL COURTROOM, SECOND FLOOR**** 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 

November 4, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

*** The meeting will be live-streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook Page. 

 

I. Call to Order  

NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 

DISTRICT 1 – SHEILA G. POUNDS     

DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY, CHAIR     

DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN     

DISTRICT 4 – ASHER GRAY     

DISTRICT 5 - STEVEN LEDFORD, VICE-CHAIR     

  

 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       

III.    Invocation – District 4 

         

 IV.    Approval of Agenda 

         

 V.      Consent Agenda –  

1.  Approval of Minutes: 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- October 7, 2024 

 

2.   Check Register – Check #’s     72308-72525 

 

VI.   Public Hearings with Business Action 

Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as rezoning, 

ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the County Commissioners.  

Following the public hearing, the Board of Commissioners will act on each item presented below.  

 

Public Hearing 1: Nelson Rd Private Drive Subdivision  

 

Business Item 1:  Nelson Rd Private Drive Subdivision  

 

Public Hearing 2: Public Hearing for an Ordinance amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes 

Chapter 8 section 8-31(b) short-term vacation rental overlay license limitation. 

  

Business Item 2:  Public Hearing for an Ordinance amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes 

Chapter 8 section 8-31(b) short-term vacation rental overlay license limitation.  

 

Public Hearing 3: Public Hearing for an Ordinance amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes 

Chapter 119, Section 119-48-Conventional zoning districts. Removing R-R and updating the 

density for RES zoning. 

 

Business Item 3:  Public Hearing for an Ordinance amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes 

Chapter 119, Section 119-48-Conventional zoning districts. Removing R-R and updating the 

density for RES zoning. 



XIII. Executive Session 

 

 

 

    

 

 

Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not more than ten (10) 

minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens, county employees or other events by the 

Commissioners.  

 

 

The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the Commission for not 

more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney will keep time.  Please be courteous of the 

3-minute time limit. Comments noted from citizens via the Jasper County FB Page. 

IX. County Commissioner Items & Updates 

 

X.   Regular Agenda  

 

Business Items: 

4. Short-Term Rental Application opening period 

5. Appointment to Planning and Zoning Board 

6. Additional 2024 LMIG Funding – Murder Creek Church Rd Resurfacing Bid Submittals 

7. 2025 LMIG Application and SPLOST Projects Recommendation 

8. Resolution to Increase Hotel Motel Excise Tax 

9. FY 2025 1st Quarter Financial Report 

10. Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 

 

XI.   County Attorney Items 

XII.   County Manager Update 

 

Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as provided by O.C.G.A.  

§50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real estate as provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-3(4); 

and discussion on employment, compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided 

in O.C.G.A. § 50-14-3(6)  

 

XIV. Adjournment  

 

VIII. Citizens Comments 

VII. Presentations/Delegations 



Consent Agenda – Item 1: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:  November 4, 2024 

 

Subject:  Approval of Minutes 

 

Summary: 

 

 

Minutes have been completed for the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 

 

• Regular Meeting Minutes-October 7, 2024 

 

 

Background: 

 

 

Cost:  $0 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

 

Approve minutes for:  

 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- September 9, 2024 

• Work Session Minutes- September 16, 2024 

3



Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

October 7, 2024 

  Regular Meeting Minutes 

                                                                     6:00 P.M. 

 

 

Chairman Bruce Henry called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 

 

Commissioners Present: Bruce Henry, Chairman; Steven Ledford, Vice Chair; Don Jernigan; Sheila Jones and 

Asher Gray.  

 

Staff: Mike Benton, County Manager, Sheila Belcher, Clerk- Administrative Services Director, Larissa Ruark, 

Chief Accounting Officer, Doug Attaway- Planning and Zoning Director,  

Pledge of Allegiance: 

Invocation: Commissioner Jernigan  

 

Agenda Approval:   Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the agenda.  Commissioner Pounds seconded 

the motion, passed unanimously.  

 

Consent Agenda: Commissioner Gray motioned to approve the following minutes  

 

• Regular Meeting Minutes- September 9, 2024 

• Work Session Minutes- September 16, 2024 

 

                                Commissioner Pounds seconded the motion, passed unanimously.      

       

Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve Check #72064-77421. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the motion, 

passed unanimously. 

 

Public Hearings: 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to begin the public hearing at 6:04 p.m. Commissioner Pounds seconded, and 

the motion passed unanimously.  

 

Public Hearing 1: Rezoning application. 2024 REZ 004. Request to Rezone 30.23 acres from RES to AG: 

Planning and Zoning Direct Doug Attaway presented a request to Rezone 30.23 acres from RES to AG. Owners 

are requesting the rezoning so they can have a small family farm. Planning and Zoning Board recommends 

approval 4 to 0. 

No one spoke in favor or against the request.  

 

Business Item 1:  Rezoning application. 2024 REZ 004. Request to re-zone 30.23 acres from RES to AG: 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the rezoning of 30.23 acres for RES to AG. Commissioner Gray 

seconded, and the motion passed unanimously. 

Public Hearing 2: Ordinance Amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes Chapter 119, 

Section 119-193.-Designation; Intent. Removing Zoning districts R-R, R-1, R-2, RL, and V-P, adding RES 

zoning District: Planning and Zoning Direct Doug Attaway presented a request for Ordinance Amendment to Part 

II, code of Ordinances which includes Chapter 119, Section 119-193.-Designation; Intent. Removing Zoning 

districts R-R, R-1, R-2, RL, and V-P, adding RES zoning District. 

No one spoke in favor or against the request. 

 

4



Business Item 2:  Ordinance Amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes Chapter 119, 

Section 119-193.-Designation; Intent. Removing Zoning districts R-R, R-1, R-2, RL, and V-P, adding RES 

zoning District:  

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the ordinance amendment. Commissioner Gray seconded the motion, 

which passed unanimously.  

 

Public Hearing 3: Ordinance Amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes Chapter 119, 

Section 119-195.- R-R Rural Residential District, Low Density. Removing Rural Residential Zoning District: 

Planning and Zoning Direct Doug Attaway presented a request for an Ordinance Amendment to Part II, Code of 

Ordinances which includes Chapter 119, Section 119-195.- R-R Rural Residential District, Low Density. Removing 

Rural Residential Zoning District. 

 

 No one spoke in favor or against the request. 

 

Business Item 3:  Ordinance Amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes Chapter 119, 

Section 119-195.- R-R Rural Residential District, Low Density. Removing Rural Residential Zoning District: 

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the ordinance amendment to Part II, Chapter 119 Section 119-195. 

Commissioner Pounds seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

 

Public Hearing 4: Ordinance Amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes Chapter 119, 

Section 119-196-RES Single Family District. Changing “not over one principle dwelling unit per two acres” 

to “not over one principle dwelling unit per five acres): Planning and Zoning Direct Doug Attaway presented a 

request for an Ordinance Amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes Chapter 119, Section 119-

196-RES Single Family District. Changing “not over one principle dwelling unit per two acres” to “not over one 

principle dwelling unit per five acres). Commissioner Gray asked why the Conservation Design requirement was 

not included. He said when approved there was a choice of 5 acre lots or conservation subdivision with 3 acre lots. 

Mt Attaway said that the board voted to remove the section. He said the section refers to the density so even in a 

conservation subdivision with a 3-acre lot you can only have one house per five acres. He said one P&Z member 

obtained from voting due to issues they had with the wording. They disagreed with the last sentence that states the 

REZ district is designed to accommodate development in areas to are served by public water. They had an issue 

with the design. Mr. Attaway said that 90% of the county's RES zoning is served by public water. Chairman Henry 

said designed to but not required.   

 

Citizens Comments:  Mary Patrick said she is not opposed to the change. She said she has an issue with the 

section saying Conservation Subdivision is required. She said it is her understanding that conservation subdivision 

was never required but a choice. She said she disagreed with the wording based on that change.    

 

Business Item 4: Ordinance Amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes Chapter 119, 

Section 119-196-RES Single Family District. Changing “not over one principle dwelling unit per two acres” 

to “not over one principle dwelling unit per five acres): Mr. Attaway said the choice was only in AG zoning but 

has always been a requirement in RES zoning and has not changed. He said the allowance for Conservation in AG 

zoning in May of 2024.  

Chairman Henry stated he thought they were trying to give the option to choose either design.  

Commissioner Ledford said that was his understanding as well with five acres minimum. 

Chairman Henry said that the choice of either was the goal if that was not the decision that had already been made.  

 

Mr. Attaway said that Conservation design subdivisions require the builder to upgrade the roads but non-

conservation design does not. He said the Board of Commissioners may want to look into changing that.  

Commissioner Gray said that the language can be added to any residential zoning and he motioned to table the 

amendment. Commissioner Ledford seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.  

5



 

Presentations/Delegations: Tony Rogers with the Development Authority of Jasper County presented a potential 

project on 2900 acres off of Rock Eagle Rd. He said the property owner plans to develop and operate the project 

themselves. He said the project is estimated to bring 4.7 million dollars in ad valorem taxes for the county. Mr. 

Rogers said that the onsite equipment is made of aluminum, copper, and silicon all found on the Earth’s surface so 

no concern for contaminated groundwater. He said that the equipment and project site would not be visible from 

any county or state road or surrounding properties. He said the will also be a 50-feet buffer around the project and 

a privacy fence around the buffer.  He said there would not be an additional need for county services such as water, 

sewage, fire, police, use of the county landfill, or additional maintenance to the county roads. He said this will not 

add jobs so it will not add a need for more schools. He said this project would not cause additional roads because it 

would not add traffic to the area. He said there would be native plants added to the property to support ground-

nesting birds. Mr. Rogers said the owner has agreed to hold two town hall meetings to provide information and 

answer questions.   

 

Commissioner Ledford said the Board of Commissioners voted unanimously not to allow Solar Farms but he 

thinks that they may need to take another look. He said that 4.7 million dollars with no increase in the population 

or need for county services could help taxpayers. Commissioner Ledford said that as long as there is no negative 

effect on the environment this project could be very beneficial to the county.  

 

Chairman Henry said that there are two meetings scheduled one on October 23rd and one on October 24th, 2024.  

   

Citizens Comments: 

Mary Patrick: Mrs. Patrick said she finds it interesting that Mr. Rogers did not mention in his presentation that 

the project was a Solar Farm. She said that he stated there are pamphlets with project information but the public 

has not seen them. Mrs. Patrick said two months ago the Board of Commissioners agreed not to allow Solar Farms 

and they are not included in the zoning. She asked if they plan to hold another zoning hearing.  

 

Chairman Henry said if they decided to move forward they would have to hold another hearing.  

Mrs. Patrick said that the Jasper County Development Authority has always been very good at telling the county of 

how much money they would receive but it doesn’t seem to happen. She said she would like to see where they got 

their figures from and how the county plans to tax this type of project. She said it would be great to have that kind 

of money coming into the county to help taxpayers but it usually doesn’t work that way. She said every time the 

county gets more money the Commissioners use it to hire more employees, buy equipment, or build something. 

She said the money is never used to help citizens and then taxes are increased. Mrs. Patrick said she would be 

asking for more information through open records. 

 

James Jurczak: Mr. Jurczac spoke against the Solar Farm project. He said that Georgia has four operating 

Nuclear reactors producing power at a low rate per kilowatt hour. He said there are two new nuclear reactors 

scheduled for use in the near future and he is just wondering if there is even a need for a solar farm and if it would 

benefit the community. He said he isn’t sure that solar panels can produce electricity at the same rate and cost as 

nuclear reactors. He said it is his understanding that the power company must buy the electricity from the solar 

farms at a much higher rate which in turn will cost the consumers more.  

 

Chairman Henry said that someone in the county was approached by a Georgia Power representative who asked 

about a solar farm project.  

 

Julie Newman: Mrs. Newman spoke about the short-term rental process. She said she feels regulating the short-

term rental in the area is a good thing but she thinks it's unfair that you cannot get a license unless you were in 

operation before July 2023. She said that they completed their home recently and wanted to be able to use it as a 

short-term rental until they were ready to retire and move into the home. Mrs. Newman said she understood some 

renters behaved badly and they had no intention of allowing that in their home and upsetting their neighbors. She 

said they would like to contribute to the community financially by renting their home and paying the taxes. She 

6



said she requests that the commissioners review the short-term rental ban policy and determine if the July 2023 

cutoff is reasonable.  

 

Misty Garvin: Mrs. Garvin spoke about short-term rentals. She said she was born and raised in Jasper County but 

just recently moved back. She said she owns two properties in the county and in February of 2023, she received a 

private message from Joanie in planning and zoning. She said in the message they were notified they were in 

violation of the short-term rental process and should cease operation to avoid fines. Mrs. Garvin said the next day 

she contacted the Planning and Zoning Director Judy Johnson. She said they immediately got involved in doing 

research and making suggestions on how the county could handle the Short-Term rental process. She said that on 

February 21, 2023, they had an in-person meeting with Ms. Johnson and Commissioner Jernigan. She said she 

recommended charging a licensing fee and certified inspection fees, as well as providing information on how other 

counties such as Butts County handled short-term rentals. Mrs. Garvin said they presented a request at a Council 

Meeting to be involved in the Short-Term Rental process and definition. She said they attempted to contact 

Planning and Zoning several times after that meeting and never received a response. She said on February 8, 2024, 

she emailed Joanie and Ms. Johnson and still did not get a response. She said she received and letter on September 

23, 2024, stating that she violated the Short-Term Rental process. Mrs. Garvin contacted Planning and Zoning and 

was informed that Doug Attaway was now the Planning and Zoning Director and that she had missed the Short-

Term Rental application deadline of July 2024. 

 

Gentry Johns: Mr. Johns spoke on the short-term rental process. He and his brother inherited their parents’ home 

on Jackson Lake. Mr. Johns said they have children who are very active and in college but cherish the memories 

made in Jasper County as children and returning as adults with children of their own. He said with growing 

expenses they decided to use the home as a short-term rental as a way to keep from selling it. He said they 

thoughtfully wrote their policies for the home as it is not just a business to them. They limit the number of guests, 

do not allow parties or events, and enforce quiet time after 10 p.m. He said they vet their renters and do not rent to 

anyone under the age of twenty-seven. He said they provide a guest guide and encourage their renter to visit local 

stores and restaurants hoping to help boost the local economy. He said they have a do-not-rent list for anyone who 

violates their policies. Mr. Jones said the home and the area are very special to them not only because of childhood 

memories with their grandparents but also memories made with their children and parents including their son who 

passed away in 2020. 

 

Paula Johns: Mrs. Johns (wife of Gentry Johns) spoke on the short-term rental process. She said the home they 

own on Jackson Lake is an essential location for their family. She said her family along with others who own 

homes here and wish to use them as short-term rentals love the area and renting their homes so they can afford to 

keep them and it is in no way a big business to them. They simply wish to be able to continue enjoying to area. She 

said that if the county forces these homeowners to sell because they can’t afford to keep them they will find they 

have many people coming to the area who do not value it. She said those people would want to change the county 

entirely. She said she is speaking from experience. She said the area she grew up in was changed when locals 

could no longer afford to live there and businesses and big-money individuals moved in and changed the entire 

area. She said they love it here and have no desire to change the area. She asked if the county would consider 

allowing more short-term rentals for people like her family. She said it could be a win/win for the county. They 

will have additional tax revenue and owners who truly care about the community. She said in the past four years 

they have paid $15000.00 in hotel/motel taxes. She said they were confused when they received a cease and desist 

letter without ever receiving a notice of the new policies. Mrs. Jones said the county should have sent a certified 

letter stating the new policies and they would have been happy to comply. She said they a requesting the 

opportunity to do so now as they are law-abiding citizens and would be an asset to the community. Mrs. Johns 

ended by quoting Psalms 24:1 The earth is the LORD's, and the fulness thereof; The world, and they that dwell 

therein. She said every resource we have comes from the Lord through His grace and Goodness.   

 

Evan Johns: Mr. Johns (brother of Gentry Johns) spoke about short-term rentals. He said his brother and sister-in-

law had spoken for their family on how they felt on a personal level and he would not give the same speech. He 

7



said the county could benefit from the taxes collected and it could help reduce the burden for taxpayers. Mr. Johns 

said he did some research and allowing 230 short-term rental properties could potentially bring in eight million 

dollars over the next ten years. Mr. Johns said they are seeking approval to continue to operation because they 

have never had an issue and did not receive notice of the change. He said they were in business before July 2023 

and would like the board's consideration of the request.  

 

Amanda Pool: Mrs. Pool spoke about short-term rentals and her request to continue operating the property she 

manages as a short-term rental property. She said that she has been a property manager for twenty-five years and 

the Board of Commissioners tweak a few things if they would like. She is in favor of regulating short-term rentals 

and said they have strict policies for the properties they manage. She said that she is seeking approval from the 

board and hopes to bring additional revenue to the county but her number one priority is the ensure her property 

complies with county policies.  

 

Jason Bunn: Mr. Bunn spoke about short-term rentals and solar farms. He said he prays the Commissioners will 

make the best decision possible for all homeowners. Mr. Bunn said he wanted to speak on the possible solar farm 

proposal. He said he isn’t against solar and believes in a variety of energy options. Mr. Bunn said the estimated 

project would bring 4.3 million but he is curious to know how much of that will benefit taxpayers. He said the 

commissioners need to consider the nature of our county and check into any environmental issues this may cause. 

He asked them to do studies on this before deciding. He said 2900 acres is a lot of land and they should drive down 

75 South and look at the solar farm in that area. He said it doesn’t appear to fit what he believes to be land 

conservation. He mentioned the damage and destruction caused by Rivian saying they have caused well water 

issues for residents there. He said he wants the commissioners to protect our community. He said he is concerned 

with how long the solar panels are good and what happens to them if they are no longer good. He asked the 

commissioner to be very careful with what they allow and where they allow it in the county. 

 

Cathy Benson: Mrs. Benson spoke on short-term rentals. She said in 2020 the commissioners voted 5/0 against 

allowing short-term rentals then at some point decided to allow 30 but regulate them. She said it went from 30 to 

12 last month and now the commissioner is considering allowing more. Mrs. Benson said she would like to know 

where it ends. She said she wants to know if the commissioners are going to follow their own rules and those set in 

place by the county attorney.  

 

Denise Jones: Mrs. Jones spoke about the short-term rentals. She said she went through the short-term rental 

process and was approved. She said several other short-term rentals are being operated in the county without 

approval. She said she would like the commissioners to enforce the rules as it is unfair to all who went through the 

process and paid the fees. She said Airbnb cannot be expected to carry the burden of enforcing the county rules. 

She said they will not do anything because they are in business to make money and are not going to remove 

properties from the platform. She requested that those who have followed the process and paid the $1500 not be 

charged any more fees until the commissioner has a better solution to enforcing the ordinances. She said that the 

application deadline was June 12, 2024, and she feels like anyone who did not meet that deadline should now wait 

until April 2025. She said the process should be consistent for everyone. 

 

County Commissioner Items & Updates: 

Commissioner Pounds: None 

 

Chairman Henry: Chairman Henry said the county received a $200,000 check from the JDA, $120,000 for the 

county and $80,000 for the schools. 

 

Commissioner Jernigan: Commissioner Jernigan spoke on the solar farm proposal. He said the commissioner did 

vote 5/0 against allowing solar farms. He said he voted that way because of information presented by another 

commissioner. He said that the panels that would be used in this project do not contain the toxins mentioned 

previously. He said he feels he voted without having all the information so now he needs to correct that by going 

to the town hall meeting and learning more about the solar panels. He said if the new information is accurate he 

feels the county could benefit from the revenue the project would bring in. He said the county could use the money 

8



to help ease the burden on citizens. He said one commissioner recently mentioned the possibility of increasing 

taxes if the cost of things continues to increase. 

 

Commissioner Gray: Commissioner Gray spoke about the solar farm project saying they need to look at it very 

closely. He said it really should have been pretty cut and dry because there was a 5/0 vote against allowing solar 

farms. He said he feels the only reason the project is being pushed is because a big money corporation wants it and 

that is why it was presented even though they had been voted down. He said 3000 acres is a lot of land that you 

cannot get back if it is destroyed by this project. He said he has to be objective because of the amount of money it 

could bring to the county but he also feels money is the root of all evil, not the fix-all. Commissioner Gray then 

spoke on the short-term rentals. He said the good thing about it for him is that we do not have a lot of them here. 

He said that he has heard people mention how many Putnam County has but we are not Putnam County. He said 

the short-term rental operators cannot say they have to look for violators of the short-term rental process. He said 

the operators are saying they were involved in the community but they haven’t been paying attention to what has 

been going on. He said that citizens have been complaining about short-term rentals for two years and the 

moratorium has been in place for a while. He said if they had been so involved they would have known these 

things. He said that there has to be some balance because they do bring money to the county but the operators were 

not involved in the community when citizens were complaining about the short-term rentals. 

 

Commissioner Ledford: None 

 

Regular Agenda 

Business Items: 

Business Item 5: Northeast Georgia Regional Commission Private Sector Appointment: David Dyer has 
resigned from this position and will be resigning as the director of the Development Authority at the end of 2024. 

Mr. Dyer has recommended the Commissioners appoint Tony Rogers. Commissioner Jernigan motioned to 

appoint Tony Rogers as Northeast Georgia Regional Commission Private Sector Appointee. Commissioner 
Ledford seconded, Motion passed unanimously.  

 

Business Item 6: Short-Term Rental License Applications Status Review: Planning and Zoning Director Doug 

Attaway presented an update on the status of the Short-term License Application. Mr. Attaway said they had 

twelve applications with ten approved with stipulations and two tabled.  He said that Mrs. Pool’s application had 

been tabled and she was in attendance seeking approval. He said that some inspections had to be rescheduled due 

to recent weather conditions. Mr. Attaway said as of September 9, 2024, the status of the short-term rental 

applications stands as listed.  

 

• 710 Eagle Dr passed all inspections and he was waiting for final payment.  

• 1045 Eagle Dr passed all inspections and paid the final payment and is currently the only one to 

receive a license.  

• 67 Miss Sara is scheduled for inspection. 

• 707 East Mourning Dove Ct owner had some issues due to the recent Biolab fire but would likely 

discuss final payment after the meeting.  

• 667 Cardinal Dr passed all inspections and waiting for final payment. 

• 74 Peregrine Ct passed all inspections waiting for final payment. 

• 141 Shoreline Dr passed all inspections waiting for final payment. 

• 161 Shoreline Dr was denied due to a lack of sufficient proof of payment of hotel/motel taxes. 

• 421 Alcovy Dr passed all inspections and waiting for final payment.  

• 400 Parrot Ct requested to remove their application.  

• 88 East Mourning Dove Ct inspection scheduled but the owner has not paid hotel/motel taxes which 

was one of his stipulations. Chairman Henry asked if he was given a time frame to have those paid. Mr. 

Attaway said they were not given a time frame but it was one of his stipulations for approval so he 

would see how the inspection goes and move forward from there.  

9



• 255 Landers Way was tabled because the applicant changed local agents due to the original agent 

being incarcerated. Mr. Attaway said the applicant was present and seeking approval of her application. 

Mr. Attaway said she has corrected all her deficiencies. Commissioner Gray motioned to approve the 

application for a license for short-term rental. Commissioner Jernigan seconded, and the motion passed 

unanimously.  

  

Commissioner Jernigan said after hearing some of the operators of the short-term rentals did not receive notices 

from the county about the ordinance changes he feels they should reopen the application process. He said he feels 

it is bad business not to send notification letters of changes but then send cease and desist letters. He said they 

could implement three strikes and you’re out rule. He said the county could use the money if the operators are 

willing to run the rentals the correct way. He said the county could even use the taxes for short-term rentals to help 

fund the employee retirement plan. He said the county attorney helps write strong rules and regulations so he sees 

no reason not to reopen the application process. Commissioner Gray said he doesn’t feel the small number of 

short-term rentals allowed will help much with the employee retirement plan. He then asked the county attorney if 

the ordinance change notice was handled legally. The county attorney said it was handled correctly that some 

counties do choose to send individual mailers but it is not required for this situation. He said posting of signs and 

newspaper ads are to usual ways to give notice. Commissioner Jernigan said he never felt it wasn’t handled legally 

but he does feel it unethical. Commissioner Ledford said that those who are running without issues are a benefit to 

the county.  

 

Commissioner Jernigan motioned to reopen the application process for short-term rentals. Commissioner Pounds 

seconded the motion.  

 

Commissioner Ledford asked if there would be a time frame and if they would only allow those who received a 

cease and desist letter to apply. 

 

Commissioner Gray said he recently read an article about short-term rentals harming the local housing market. He 

said it limits the number of homes available for purchase or long-term renters. He said he would not support 

increasing the number of short-term rentals allowed in the county.  

 

Chairman Henry called for a vote, motion passed 4 to 1 Commissioner Gray opposed.  

 

Business Item 7: Jasper County Library Board Appointment – Azalea Regional Library: Mr. John Stork 

currently serves on the board as the city-appointed member. The city no longer helps with funding to the library 

therefore they can no longer appoint members. Mr. Stork is seeking an appointment from the county. He said he 

has served since 2015 and his current term is set to expire in 2027. Chairman Henry said if he was appointed by 

the country his term would reset for a six-year term.  

 

Commissioner Ledford motioned to appoint John Stork to the Jasper County Library Board. Commissioner 

Jernigan seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.  

 

Business Item 8: Bailiff’s Pay Increase Request – Superior, Probate, Magistrate, and Juvenile Courts: 

County Clerk Leann Airington presented a request to increase the pay for Bailiffs from $50 a day to the Grand 

Jury recommendation of $100 a day. She said the pay has been the same since 2006. She said she believes what 

she is currently allotted for Jury and Bailiff pay with cover the increase because we do not have very many jury 

trials. She said the court days are more frequent and longer than they were when the pay was set at $50 a day. 

Chairman Henry asked what the average hours are on court days. Mrs. Airington said normal days are 9a.m to 4 

p.m. but have lasted as late as 7 p.m.  She said times depending on the judge they do no break for lunch. 

Commissioner Pounds motioned to raise the pay for bailiffs to $100.00 a day. Commissioner Ledford seconded, 

and the motion passed unanimously.  

 

Business Item 9: Ross+ Associates Proposal – Impact Fee Program Amendment: County Manager Mike 

Benton said the Jasper County Board of Commissioners has requested to make changes to the impact fee program. 

10



He said the DCA requires a formal amendment process.  He said the amendments to the impact fee program would 

be to Public Facilities and which areas will receive the impact fees. They will also include changes to the impact 

fees and updating the ordinance. Mr. Ross was present and has provided a proposal of $8800. Mr. Ross said there 

would need to be discussion but he believes the impact fees will go up a lot because of inflation and it has not 

changed since 2007. Commissioner Ledford motioned to hire Ross and Associates to work with the 

Commissioners to amend the impact fees program using the fund balance and impact fees to cover the cost. 

Commissioner Pounds seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.   

 

Business Item 10: Senior Center Drainage Project Bid Results: County Manager Mike Benton said a bid was 

put out to stop the flooding that occurs at the senior center with heavy rains. Three bids were submitted. Johnson 

Grading $18534. J Wyatt Clearing $21,000. Mark Burrow Grading $23,828. He said all three companies are local. 

He said he talked to several people including County Engineer Robert Jordan and Public Works Director Michael 

Walsh and the recommendation was to go with the low bid. 

 

Commissioner Jernigan motioned to award the bid to Johnson Grading Incorporated for $18,534 paid from Fund 

Balance. Commissioner Ledford seconded, and the motion passed unanimously.    

 

Business Item 11: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed: Two work are sessions scheduled 

for October 21, 2024, at 6p.m and October 28, 2024, at 6 p.m.  

County Attorney Items: None  

County Manager Update:  Mr. Benton gave an update on the new Elections and Registration Board will have its 
first official meeting in the county commissioner’s meeting room on October 15, 2024, at 6 p.m. He said the new 

Pothole patching machine is ready for pickup. He said the county is clearing the area behind Fire Station One for 

additional voter parking. He said he wanted to thank the New Bethlehem Baptist Church for allowing the county to 

use their parking lot for several years.  

Executive Session: None 

Adjourn:  Commissioner Ledford motioned to adjourn at 7:41p.m, Commissioner Jernigan 

seconded, and the motion passed unanimously. 

___________________________                                                  __________________________ 

Bruce Henry, Chairman                                                                  Sheila Jefferson, Clerk                

 

  

11



 

Consent Agenda – Item 2: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Board of Commissioners 

 

Date: October 7, 2024 

 

Subject:  Approval of Check Register 

 

 

Summary: 

 

A check register will be generated by the finance department on the meeting day for signature and approval to 

process the checks. 

 

Background: 

 

Cost:  $0 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

 

Approve processing of check #’s: 72065-77421 

 

 

  

12



Public Hearing 1: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 

 

Date:   November 4, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Nelson Rd Private Drive Subdivision  

 

 

Summary:  Private Drive subdivision of Nelson Rd. The applicant is requesting a two-lot 51.6 acre, private drive 

subdivision of Nelson Road.  

 

 

 

 

 

Background: The Planning and Zoning Board voted to recommend the private drive subdivision with a 4-0 vote 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

13



100' BUFFER

NELSON ROAD

50' BSL

5.00 AC

46.59 AC

TRACT A

TRACT B

1.5" OTP

5/8" REBAR

5/8" REBAR

5/8" REBAR

1.5" OTP

@ FENCE POST

2" OTP

5/8" REBAR

5/8" REBAR

NF @ BASE OF

1" FLAT IRON

S4
5°11'25"W

  1
267.80'

S4
5°11'29"W

  9
36.37'

N43°16'08"W
  826.29'

N45°53'35"E
465.10'

S24°12'08"E  445.32'

S41°21'20"E
299.92'

S41°28'17"E
109.96'

S44°14'18"E
486.68'

S4
5°10'44"W

  7
06.80'

S44°18'23"E
156.81'

S41°28'17"E
22.22'

N43°16'08"W
47.43'

S72°36'30"W
Ch=194.15'
R=1632.73'

A=194.26'

NOF
044 077

CORDELIA N GOODMAN &
OTHERS

D.B. 484, p. 19
P.B. 11, p. 83

NOF
044 077 001

WALLY T NELSON &
OTHERS

D.B. 1216, p. 169
P.B. 11, p. 83

NOF

044 081

GEORGE C GOODMAN JR

D.B. 89, p. 129

P.B. 9, p. 29

NOF
044 065

JORDAN FAMILY
PROPERTIES, LLLP
WALKER FAMILY

PROPERTIES, LLLP

NOF
044 084

FAREED PYARALI
BHAMANI &SARANUCE

KOUDJODJI KOMLAN
D.B. 994, p. 145

P.B. 9, p. 716

LAKE

1/2" REBAR

NOF
044 077

CORDELIA N GOODMAN &
OTHERS

D.B. 484, p. 19
P.B. 11, p. 83

NOF
044 075

JONES H & BETTY
BENJAMIN NELSON
D.B.12164, p. 173

P.B. 6, p. 699

NOF
044 077 001

WALLY T NELSON &
OTHERS

D.B. 1216, p. 169
P.B. 11, p. 83

1/2" OTP

NOF
044 065

JORDAN FAMILY
PROPERTIES, LLLP
WALKER FAMILY

PROPERTIES, LLLP

NOF
044 065

JORDAN FAMILY
PROPERTIES, LLLP
WALKER FAMILY

PROPERTIES, LLLP

NOF
044 073

McMICHAEL S C EST
C/O JOE McMICHAEL

NOF
044 070

MADOTHA R ROOKS
C/O CAMERON ROOKS

S44°18'21"E  2291.60'

S70°31'59"W
Ch=90.81'
R=3367.75'
A=90.82'

S69°22'13"W
Ch=45.88'
R=3367.75'
A=45.88'

APPARENT 30' PRESCRIPTIVE EASEMENT
CENTERLINE OF ROAD IS PROPERTY LINE

UNPAVED ROAD

TIE:

N:1180785.91
E:2429487.65

ZONED "AG"

ZONED "AG"

ZONED "AG"

ZONED "AG"

ZONED "AG"

ZONED "AG"

ZONED "AG"

ZONED "AG"

ZONED "AG"

ZONED "AG"

ZONED "AG"

ZONED "AG"

EXISTING 10'
GRAVEL DRIVE

PROPOSED
PRIVATE DRIVE WITH

P.O.B.

3.22 AC±

(SEE INSET A)

GA HIGHW
AY 83 S

(100' R
/W

)

@ FENCE POST

APPROXIMATE 
LAND LOT CORNER

LL 87

LL 88
APPROXIMATE 

LAND LOT CORNER

LL 94

LL 93

EXISTING
HOME

LL 64

LL 63LL 87

LL 88

30' BSL

50' B
SL

50' B
SL

50' B
SL

50' BSL

ACCESS EASEMENT

80'

AND NO-ACCESS

EASEMENT

30' BSL

30' BSL
30' BSL

S44°06'25"E

225.00'

S4
5°53'35"W

210.51'

N45°53'35"E  2
748.36'

S68°44'08"E274.36'

S62°09'14"W238.95'

BSL

N43°16'08"W
93.90'

N:1178549.35
E:2427180.25

CREEK

N35°35'30"W
Ch=131.18'
R=582.05'
A=131.46'

S44°49'38"W
Ch=60.10'

R=70.00'
A=377.71'

N35°55'40"W
Ch=105.08'

R=522.05'
A=105.26'

NELSON ROAD

RED DIRT ROAD

30' PRESCRIPTIVE

EXISITING 10' GRAVEL DRIVE

EASEMENT

ACCESS EASEMENT &
RED DIRT ROAD
(16' GRAVEL - 40' RAD)

60.41'

15' HDPE

60'16'

4" GAB
CUL-DE-SAC

PROPOSED EASEM
ENT

TRACT A

TRACT B

SUBJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION:
CURRENT OWNER: DAN M. MAULDIN, JR. AND MARY  MAULDIN
DEED RECORD: D.B. 456, p. 224
PLAT RECORD: P.B. 9, p. 716
TAX RECORD: TAX PARCEL 044 084 001

THE PLAT CLOSURE ACCURACY FOR TRACT A IS 1 FOOT IN 257,158 FEET.
THE PLAT CLOSURE ACCURACY FOR TRACT B IS 1 FOOT IN 559,554 FEET.

FIELD DATA WAS COLLECTED USING A TOPCON GM52 TOTAL STATION
AND A JAVAD TRIUMPH-LS+ DUAL-FREQUENCY RTK GNSS RECEIVER
REFERENCING THE TRIMBLE VRS-NOW REAL-TIME NETWORK AND
HAVING A RELATIVE POSITIONAL ACCURACY OF LESS THAN 0.04 FEET.

THE FIELD SURVEY WAS COMPLETED IN JULY 2024.

THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN A
FLOODPLAIN AS DETERMINED FROM THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT AGENCY MAP PANEL 13159C0225E FOR JASPER
COUNTY, GEORGIA DATED 10-13-22.

EASEMENTS OR RIGHTS-OF-WAY MAY EXIST WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN
HEREON AND MAY BE RECORDED OR UNRECORDED.

HORIZONTAL: STATE PLANE, WEST ZONE, NAD83 (2011).

PROPERTY BOUNDARY
OVERHEAD POWER
EASEMENT
ADJOINING PROPERTY LINE
CREEK OR SHORELINE
ASPHALT PAVEMENT
EDGE OF DIRT/GRAVEL

LL

P.O.B.

D.B.

POWER POLE

POINT OF BEGINNING

DEED BOOK
P.B.

LAND LOT
PLAT BOOK

2/1

BEARING CHANGE (NO PIN SET)
" SOLID ROD (REBAR) SET

OPEN-TOP PIPE FOUND

LEGEND

SOLID ROD (REBAR) FOUND P.O.R. POINT OF REFERENCE
NOF NOW OR FORMERLY

OTP OPEN-TOP PIPE

SURVEYOR'S TRAVERSE NAIL SET

CMF CONCRETE MON. FD

SURVEYOR'S PK NAIL SET

DENOTES PAINTED TREES OR FENCE NEAR PROPERTY LINE.
LETTER IS CODE BELOW, NUMBER IS FEET FROM LINE, AND
ARROW IS DIRECTION FROM LINE THAT EVIDENCE WAS FOUND.

B: BLUE PAINT
W: WHITE PAINT
Y: YELLOW PAINT
R: RED PAINT

TP: STEEL TEE POST
HW: HOG WIRE
BW: BARBED WIRE
CL: CHAIN LINK

BUILDING HATCH GRAVEL

(706) 468-8999      www.jordan-eng.com
144 N. WARREN ST.   MONTICELLO, GA 31064

Engineering    Surveying    Soils    UAV Mapping

Corporate License No. LSF 000768

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

SITE

G
RI

D 
G

A-
W

N

AUGUST 15, 2024SCALE 

GEORGIA MILITIA DISTRICT 373
JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA

DAN MAULDIN SUBDIVISION
LAND LOT 88 - DISTRICT 17

PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR

1" = 200'

0' 200' 400' 600'

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT NOTES:
CURRENT ZONING CLASSIFICATION FOR THIS SITE IS AG, AGRICULTURAL.  THIS LAYOUT REFLECTS
JASPER COUNTY REQUIREMENT FOR GREENSPACE CONSERVATION SUBDIVISION DESIGN.

TOTAL PROJECT AREA: 51.60 ACRES
TOTAL LOTS:  2 LOTS

MINIMUM DWELLING SQUARE FOOTAGE 1,200 SQ FT

DESIGN STANDARDS FOR LOTS:
MINIMUM LOT SIZE: 5.00 AC
AVERAGE LOT SIZE: 25.8 AC
MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK:         80 FT
MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK:       30 FT
MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK:     50 FT
EASEMENT WIDTH:     60 FT

EXISTING CONTOURS SHOWN HEREON ARE SOURCED FROM NOAA LIDAR 2020 DATA .  THE
CONTOUR INTERVAL IS 2 FEET.

GRAVEL STREET WIDTH IS 16 FEET.

ROAD LENGTH:
RED DIRT RD:          213 LF

WASTEWATER DISPOSAL FOR LOTS SHOWN HEREON IS PROPOSED TO BE PERMITTED THROUGH
INDIVIDUAL ONSITE SEWAGE MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS PERMITTED TO INDIVIDUAL BUILDERS AT THE
TIME OF CONSTRUCTION BY THE JASPER COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT.

PUBLIC UTILITIES ARE PROPOSED AS FOLLOWS:
WATER: PRIVATE WELLS
SEWER: INDIVIDUAL PRIVATE SEPTIC SYSTEMS
ELECTRIC: CENTRAL GEORGIA EMC

GA HW
Y 83 SCLAY RD

FREEDONIA RD

ELIJAH JOHNSON RD

FELTO
N

 M
cM

ICHAEL RD

MIDDLEBROOK

POND RD

HAYES RD

DEVELOPER:
Dan Mauldin
550 Nelson Rd
Monticello, Georgia 31064
Office Phone:  706.476.0313
Contact:  Dan Mauldin
Email:  dmmauldin@icloud.com

THE PROPERTY DEPICTED HERE
REPRESENTS ALL OF THE APPLICANT'S
OWNERSHIP AT THE SITE.

SCALE 1" = 60'

JASPER COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT APPROVES
THIS PRELIMINARY PLAT AS PRESENTED. A LEVEL 3
SOIL SURVEY WILL BE REQUIRED FOR TRACT A AT
THE TIME OF HOUSE PERMITTING.

HEALTH DEPARTMENT CERTIFICATION:

_____________________________          _________
David Mercer, Jasper County Health Dept.                   Date

PURSUANT TO THE LAND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF JASPER COUNTY, ALL
REQUIREMENTS FOR APPROVAL HAVING BEEN FULFILLED, THIS PRELIMINARY PLAT
WAS GIVEN APPROVAL BY THE JASPER COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMISSION. THIS APPROVAL SHALL BE CONTINGENT UPON AND SUBJECT TO
FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS OF JASPER COUNTY ALONG WITH THE
COMPLETION OF THE PROVISIONS FOR WATER SUPPLY, SEWERAGE AND DRAINAGE
IMPROVEMENTS NECESSARY FOR THE ORDERLY COMPLETION OF THIS SUBDIVISION
AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH JASPER COUNTY REGULATIONS.

   BY: ________________________________________________________          _________________
         THE JASPER COUNTY P & Z COMMISSION OR ITS DESIGNEE                                  DATE

JASPER COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:

OWNER CERTIFICATION:

State of Georgia, County of Jasper
The owner of the land shown on this plat and whose
name is subscribed hereto, in person or through a duly
authorized agent, certifies that all state, city, and county
taxes or other assessments now due on this land have
been paid in full.

____________________________           _____________
Owner                                                                                Date INSET A

THIS PRELIMINARY PLAT
IS NOT TO BE RECORDED

Document ID: 3ef1197f84f483abcfacf06071f774f37b41485274d3f0163fbd10d38ce241d1

Signer ID: QJYYPGO613...

14

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\CIVIL\MAULDIN, DAN - 550 NELSON RD. - 5 ACRE CUTOUT\DWG\DAN MAULDIN SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLAT R3.DWG  August 16, 2024  August 16, 2024August 16, 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 2902

AutoCAD SHX Text
R 

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



Subpart B - LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 
Chapter 105 - DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS 

ARTICLE III. PRIVATE DRIVE SUBDIVISIONS 
 

 

 

Jasper County, Georgia, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2024-01-23 09:29:36 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 2) 

 
Page 1 of 3 

ARTICLE III. PRIVATE DRIVE SUBDIVISIONS 

Sec. 105-60. Purposes and intent; application of certain uses and structures. 

(a) Purpose and intent. The purpose of the private drive subdivision development is to authorize, subject to 
certain standards, the development of residential subdivisions in which a street providing access to lots in 
the development is not dedicated to the public, but is held in common ownership by the owners of the lots. 
Private drives and streets are not maintained by the county. This development is only available in the AG 
(Agricultural) Zoning District.  

(b) Principal uses and structures. Principal uses and structures in private drive subdivisions are single-family 
detached residential dwellings permitted under the underlying zoning district.  

(c) Accessory uses and structures. Accessory uses and structures in private drive subdivisions are accessory uses 
permitted under the underlying zoning district.  

(d) Conditional uses. Conditional uses in private drive subdivisions are conditional uses as permitted under the 
underlying zoning district.  

(Ord. of 6-21-2010, § 3.01) 

Sec. 105-61. Property development standards. 

Property development standards shall be as permitted under the underlying zoning district with the 
following exceptions:  

(1) No more than five lots shall be permitted in the subdivision.  

(2) Each lot must contain a minimum of five acres, and no further re-subdivision of lots within a private 
road subdivision shall be permitted.  

(3) The minimum floor area of the primary dwelling shall be 1,200 square feet.  

(4) Private drainage easements, drainage structures, ditches, and pipes shall be constructed to the same 
standards for public facilities permitted in the underlying zoning district, but shall be maintained in 
perpetuity by the landowner or by a mandatory homeowner association.  

(5) No lot in a private drive subdivision shall have direct access to a public street.  

(6) The design and construction of private drives shall comply with the following minimum requirements:  

Su rf
a

ce
 

Ty p
e 

M
i

n
i

m u M
i

n
i

m u M
i

n
i

m u M ax
i

m u A
g

gr eg at e 
 

B
a

M
i

n
i

m u m
  

A
s

Zo n
i

n
g 

 

Gravel  60 feet  16 feet  4 feet  14%  4"  
minimum  

N/A  AG  

Asphalt  60 feet  16 feet  4 feet  17%  4"  
minimum  

1½" E-Mix  AG  

 

Private drives shall have a maximum length of 2,000 feet, unless otherwise approved by the director. 
The termination of any private drive shall include a cul-de-sac turnaround area with a minimum outside 
radius of 40 feet.  

15



 

 

 
    Created: 2024-01-23 09:29:35 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 2) 

 
Page 2 of 3 

(7) The private street easement shall be a cross-easement granting access to all lot owners and any other 
contiguous property that requires access to such street in order to access a public street adjacent to 
the property developed as a private drive subdivision.  

(8) Building setbacks are measured from the adjacent side of the private street easement line.  

(9) Gated entrances will be allowed only if the gate restricting access to the public provides adequate 
space outside the public right-of-way to provide for queuing of at least two standard vehicles in 
addition to a turnaround area.  

(10) Gated communities must provide approved access by emergency vehicles.  

(11) All streets within private drive subdivisions must provide approved street name signs and traffic control 
signs, and lots within the private drive subdivision shall display approved street numbers. No street 
within any private road subdivision may be connected to a private street within another private road 
subdivision.  

(12) A 50-foot non-buildable buffer shall be maintained around the perimeter of the subdivision.  

(13) A 100-foot non-buildable buffer shall be maintained adjacent to existing public streets that abut the 
subdivision.  

(14) The minimum lot width at the building line shall be 200 feet. Setbacks shall be the same as otherwise 
required in the AG district.  

(15) Streets, roadside ditches, cross-drain pipes, and required stormwater management facilities shall be 
maintained entirely by either the individual homeowners or a homeowners' association. Protective 
covenants containing provisions for maintenance of all installed subdivision improvements shall be 
included, and such shall be in a form satisfactory to the county planning commission; such protective 
covenants shall be submitted for approval to the county planning commission and upon its approval, 
recorded in the clerk of superior court office. Other drainageways, drainage structures, lakes, and dams 
may be maintained by either a homeowners' association or the individual homeowners; provided, 
however, that such responsibility for maintenance must be specified in the protective covenants.  

(16) All other provisions applicable to the AG district shall apply to all private drive subdivisions except 
where in conflict with the provisions of this section.  

(Ord. of 6-21-2010, § 3.02) 

Sec. 105-62. Compliance with other standards required. 

(a) Except as otherwise herein expressly provided, the owner must comply with all other provisions of the 
county development standards.  

(b) The final subdivision plat must be certified by a state-registered land surveyor, state-certified landscape 
architect, or a registered professional engineer, together will all other certifications otherwise required for 
other subdivisions constructed pursuant to other sections of this article under the applicable provisions of 
this chapter. The engineering certification shall certify that the roads and other improvements within the 
subdivision comply in all respects with the requirements of this article and other requirements of this 
chapter applicable thereto.  

(c) All surety requirements otherwise provided for the installation of improvements shall also apply to 
subdivisions under this article.  

(Ord. of 6-21-2010, § 3.03) 

16



 

 

 
    Created: 2024-01-23 09:29:36 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 2) 

 
Page 3 of 3 

Secs. 105-63—105-82. Reserved. 

 

17



Business Item 1: 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 

 

Date:     November 4, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Nelson Rd Private Drive Subdivision  

 

Summary:  Mr. Mauldin is requesting a two-lot 51.6 acre, private drive subdivision of Nelson Road.  He intends 

to gift his son 5 acres to build a home on family land. Mr. Mauldin did not have enough road frontage to 

subdivide his 51.6 acres. 

 

 

 

 

Background: The Planning and Zoning Board voted to recommend the private drive subdivision with a 4-0 vote 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion  

 

 

  

18



Public Hearing 2: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 

 

Date:   November 4, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Public Hearing for an Ordinance amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes Chapter 

8 section 8-31(b) short-term vacation rental overlay license limitation. Updating the total number of short-term 

rental licenses.  

 

 

Summary: A public hearing was advertised prior to the BOC voting to reopen the short-term rental application 

period. 

 

 

 

 

Background: The Planning and Zoning Board voted to table the ordinance amendment with a 4-0 vote. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

19



Business Item 2: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 

 

Date:     November 4, 2024 

 

 

Subject:    Ordinance amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes Chapter 8 section 8-31(b) 

short-term vacation rental overlay license limitation.  

 

 

Summary:  The BOC voted to reopen the short-term rental application period after the ordinance change was 

advertised. 

 

 

 

 

 

Background: The Planning and Zoning Board voted to table the ordinance amendment with a 4-0 vote. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Table   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

20



Public Hearing 3: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 

 

Date:   November 4, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Public Hearing for an Ordinance amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes Chapter 

119, Section 119-48-Conventional zoning districts. Removing R-R and updating the density for RES zoning. 

 

 

Summary:  BOC voted on May 6, 2024, to change the density requirements in the RES zoning. 

 

 

 

 

Background: The Planning and Zoning Board voted to recommend the ordinance amendment with a 4-0 vote. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

21



 

 

 
    Created: 2024-01-23 09:29:42 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 2) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 119-48. Conventional zoning districts. 

In order to carry out the intent and purpose of this chapter, the county is divided into the following zoning 
districts:  

 Abbreviation  Name  Density  
(Minimum Lot Size)  

AG  Agricultural  5 acres (5 acre) 

R-R  Rural Residential — Low Density  3 acres  

RES  Single-Family Residential  2 5 acres (5 acre) 

RES in Conservation Subdivision Single-Family Residential 5 acres  (3 acres) 

O-I  Office-Institutional  1.2 acres/10,000 sq. ft.**  

C-1  Neighborhood Commercial  1.2 acres/5,000 sq. ft.**  

C-2  General Commercial  1.2 acres  

M  Manufacturing  1.2 acres  

 

*=With public water or sewer as approved by the county health department  

**=Must have public water and sewers  

 (Ord. of 7-20-2009, § 4; Ord. of 11-7-2022, § XII; Ord. of 3-6-2023, § III) 

 

22



Business Item 3: 

 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning 

 

Date:     November 4, 2024 

 

 

Subject:    Ordinance amendment to Part II, Code of Ordinances which includes Chapter 119, Section 119-

48-Conventional zoning districts. Removing R-R and updating the density for RES zoning. 

 

 

 

Summary:  BOC voted on May 6, 2024, to change the density requirements in the RES zoning. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Background: The Planning and Zoning Board voted to recommend the ordinance amendment with a 4-0 vote 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion  

 

 

 

 

 

 

23



Business Item 4: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Planning and Zoning  

 

Date:   November 4, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Short-Term Rental Application opening period. 

   

 

 

Summary: BOC should set the timeframe for accepting applications for short-term rentals. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Background: BOC voted to open up accepting short-term rental applications at the October 7, meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion. 

  

24



Business Item 5: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:  Planning and Zoning 

 

Date:   November 4, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Appointment to Planning and Zoning Board 

   

 

 

Summary:  

Planning and Zoning has one board opening which the term expired in September 2024. 

 

Staff has advertised the position.  

 

The Board of Commissioners needs to appoint a citizen to fill the expiring term. The current seat is filled by Mr. 

Bill Nash who is applying for reappointment. The only application received for the position was Mr. Nash’s. 

 

 

 

 

Background:  

The Planning and Zoning Board is a 5 member board with 3-year terms.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: Board Discretion 

  

25



26



27



28



Business Item 6: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Roads and Bridges 

 

Date:   November 4, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Additional 2024 LMIG Funding – Murder Creek Church Rd Resurfacing Bid Submittals 

 

 

Summary:  

 

Project Scope: 

Murder Creek Church Rd – Full Depth Reclamation and Resurfacing 

.70 Miles Section from Marben Farm Road southward to 30’ past the Brooke Ager Discovery Center parking area 

at the Charlie Elliott Wildlife Center 

 

Bids Received: 

Atlanta Paving   $351,249.36 

Blount Construction  $294,229.59 

East Coast Grading  $408,804.75 

MHB Paving   $352,254.25 

Pittman Construction  $346,784.40 

ShepCo Paving  $359,345.49 

 

Background:  

Jasper County BOC requested funding support from GDOT for resurfacing the road section of Murder Creek 

Church Rd that serves as the gateway to the Charlie Elliott WMA in Northern Jasper County. 

GDOT has committed the lesser amount of $245,000 or 70% of the project cost. 

GDOT will fund this project as a reimbursement funding. 

 

Cost:  

 

Estimated Final Cost 

Contractor Bid      $ 294,229 

Engineering      $      2400 

Estimated Total     $  296,629 

GDOT Reimbursement Rate    x  70% 

Estimated GDOT Reimbursement Amount  $  207,640 

Estimated Final Cost to County   $    88,989 

 

Final Cost estimate and GDOT reimbursement estimate based on award to low bidder and estimated final 

engineering costs. 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Motion to approve the bid from Blount Construction in the amount of $294,229.59 for the FDR Project of .70 

miles of Murder Creek Church Rd as presented. 

  

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



Business Item 7: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Roads and Bridges 

 

Date:   November 4, 2024 

 

 

Subject: 2025 LMIG Application and SPLOST Projects Recommendation 

 

Summary:  

 

Recommendations for 2025 LMIG Projects for the GDOT Application and 2025 SPLOST Projects 

 

Aikenton Road   $1,431,476 

3.75 miles 

Full Depth Reclamation 

 

Georgia Pacific Road   $ 366,956 

1.45 miles 

Patch and Overlay 

 

Miss Sarah Road   $  89,667 

.11 miles 

Patch and Overlay 

 

Total     $1,888,099 

 

Background:  

2024 GDOT LMIG Amount     $ 663,275 

Required 30% County Match     $ 198,982 

Minimum 2024 LMIG Project Cost    $ 862,257 

 

2024 SPLOST revenues allocated to roads and bridges are averaging $130,000 per month. 

 

2025 GDOT LMIG      $    663,275 

SPLOST FUND Projected Balance at 9-30-2025  $ 1,560,000 

Total        $2,223,275 

 

Road Improvement Planning Group 

County Engineer – Robert Jordan 

Public Works Director – Michael Walsh 

County Manager – Mike Benton 

 

Cost:   

$1,888,099 

Funded by 2025 LMIG and 2024 SPLOST 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Approve 2025 LMIG Projects and 2024 SPLOST Projects as Presented 

  

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



Business Item 8: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:   November 4, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Resolution to Increase Hotel Motel Excise Tax 

   

 

 

Summary:  

 

At the October 28, 2024 Work Session, the BOC discussed increasing the hotel motel excise tax to 8%. 

 

Currently, the Jasper County hotel-motel excise tax is 5%. 

 

State law allows counties to enact local legislation to increase the excise tax to 8%. 

 

 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

Jasper County BOC adopted the Hotel Motel Excise Tax Ordinance in January 2020. 

 

The hotel-motel excise tax enacted was 5%. 

 

The BOC contracts with the Monticello Jasper County Chamber of Commerce as the official Destination 

Marketing Organization. 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

Board Discretion 

  

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



Business Item 9:  

 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

Department:  Finance  

Date:  November 4, 2024 

Subject:  FY 2025 1st Quarter Financial Report 

 

 

 

Summary:                                                                                                                                                          

Staff will present a Financial Report for 1st Quarter FY 2025. 

 

Background:                                                                                                                                                                 

 

Cost: 

None    

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion:  None Required 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

57



JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FY2025 1ST QUARTER

FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

 
FUND FY 2025 FY 2025 % %

# BUDGET ACTUAL COLLECTED REMAINING

100 GENERAL FUND - 
LINE # REVENUE

1 ADVALOREM PROPERTY TAX 8,058,894$      3,656,791$    45.4% 54.6%
2 VEHICLE & MOBILE HOME TAX 1,252,150$      365,764$        29.2% 70.8%
3 PRIOR YEARS TAX 200,300$          88,361$          44.1% 55.9%
4 FOREST LAND PROTECTION GRANT 230,124$          -$                     0.0% 100.0%
5 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 1,330,000$      340,478$        25.6% 74.4%
6 INSURANCE PREMIUM TAX 996,835$          -$                     0.0% 100.0%
7 TAX COMISSIONER COMMISSION 259,000$          137,688$        53.2% 46.8%
8 TIMBER TAX 25,000$            9,478$            37.9% 62.1%
9 RAILROAD TAX 33,000$            -$                     0.0% 100.0%

10 REAL ESTATE TRANSFER TAX 62,000$            13,130$          21.2% 78.8%
11 INTANGIBLE TAX 154,000$          40,855$          26.5% 73.5%
12 ALCOHOL EXCISE TAX 83,000$            22,358$          26.9% 73.1%
13 BUSINESS LICENSE TAX 34,000$            -$                     0.0% 100.0%
14 ENERGY EXCISE TAX 30,000$            11,005$          36.7% 63.3%
15 OTHER TAXES 900$                  211$                23.4% 76.6%
16 PENALTIES & INTEREST 98,500$            39,898$          40.5% 59.5%
17 EMS 475,000$          158,639$        33.4% 66.6%
18 PROBATE COURT 215,000$          51,071$          23.8% 76.2%
19 SUPERIOR COURT 182,500$          38,641$          21.2% 78.8%
20 MAGISTRATE COURT 2,500$              860$                34.4% 65.6%
21 SHERIFF 45,000$            -$                     0.0% 100.0%
22 JAIL 13,000$            5,168$            39.8% 60.2%
23 RECREATION 89,100$            28,169$          31.6% 68.4%
24 PLANNING & ZONING 313,900$          122,849$        39.1% 60.9%
25 EMA 6,620$              -$                     0.0% 100.0%
26 ANIMAL CONTROL 1,800$              827$                45.9% 54.1%
27 FIRE DISTRICT - JCWSA 54,000$            8,642$            16.0% 84.0%
28 FOREST WILDLIFE GRANT 45,000$            -$                     0.0% 100.0%
29 INTEREST 240,000$          80,006$          33.3% 66.7%
30 OTHER REVENUE 61,400$            52,783$          86.0% 14.0%
31 SENIOR CENTER 198,659$          36,395$          18.3% 81.7%
32 TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE 14,791,182$    5,310,065$    35.9% 64.1%

FY 2025 FY 2025 % %
100 GENERAL FUND - BUDGET ACTUAL EXPENDED UNENCUMBERED

DEPT # EXPENDITURES
33 100 GENERAL GOVERNMENT 2,359,151$      582,998$        24.7% 75.3%
34 200 JUDICIAL 1,054,773$      242,334$        23.0% 77.0%
35 300 PUBLIC SAFETY 6,601,162$      1,862,571$    28.2% 71.8%
36 400 PUBLIC WORKS 2,500,096$      759,479$        30.4% 69.6%
37 600 CULTURE/RECREATION 762,241$          183,847$        24.1% 75.9%
38 700 HOUSING & DEVELOPMENT 446,524$          92,811$          20.8% 79.2%
39 900 APPROPRIATIONS 301,911$          74,656$          24.7% 75.3%
40 950 COMPONENT UNITS 763,848$          167,976$        22.0% 78.0%
41 TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 14,789,706$    3,966,672$    26.8% 73.2%

58



JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FY2025 1ST QUARTER 

FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING

JUNE 30, 2025
FY 2025 FY 2025 % %

100 GENERAL FUND - BUDGET ACTUAL EXPENDED UNENCUMBERED

DEPT # EXPENDITURES
LINE # 100 GENERAL GOVERNMENT-

42 01110 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 371,633$      113,892$        30.6% 69.4%
43 01300 EXECUTIVE 202,600$      35,207$          17.4% 82.6%
44 01400 ELECTIONS 56,324$        13,648$          24.2% 75.8%
45 01401 REGISTRAR 54,579$        13,363$          24.5% 75.5%
46 01402 ELECTIONS AND REGISTRATIONS 102,901$      367$                0.4% 99.6%
47 01510 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 314,006$      69,044$          22.0% 78.0%
48 01540 HUMAN RESOURCES 206,451$      51,355$          24.9% 75.1%
49 01545 TAX COMMISSIONER 298,893$      79,335$          26.5% 73.5%
50 01150 TAX ASSESSOR 361,089$      81,750$          22.6% 77.4%
51 01565 GOV'T BUILDINGS 189,390$      69,137$          36.5% 63.5%
52 80000 DEBT SERVICE 201,285$      55,901$          27.8% 72.2%
53 TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 2,359,151$   582,998$        24.7% 75.3%

200 JUDICIAL-
54 02150 SUPERIOR COURT 432,319$      98,549$          22.8% 77.2%
55 02200 DISTRICT ATTORNEY 71,778$        19,200$          26.7% 73.3%
56 02400 MAGISTRATE COURT 152,595$      39,281$          25.7% 74.3%
57 02450 PROBATE COURT 220,894$      50,770$          23.0% 77.0%
58 02600 JUVENILE COURT 4,000$          -$                     0.0% 100.0%
59 03100 COURTS: OTHER COSTS 173,187$      34,534$          19.9% 80.1%
60 TOTAL JUDICIAL 1,054,773$   242,334$        23.0% 77.0%

300 PUBLIC SAFETY-
61 03300 SHERIFF 3,092,789$   1,001,183$     32.4% 67.6%
62 03326 JAIL 1,359,907$   297,407$        21.9% 78.1%
63 03360 COURTHOUSE SECURITY 157,384$      15,770$          10.0% 90.0%
64 03550 FIRE RESCUE 1,717,984$   481,161$        28.0% 72.0%
65 03700 CORONER 40,763$        6,718$             16.5% 83.5%
66 03900 ANIMAL CONTROL 205,152$      56,120$          27.4% 72.6%
67 03920 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 27,183$        4,213$             15.5% 84.5%
68 TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 6,601,162$   1,862,571$     28.2% 71.8%

69 400 PUBLIC WORKS-ROADS AND BRIDGES 2,500,096$   759,479$        30.4% 69.6%

600 CULTURE/RECREATION-
70 06100 RECREATION- 363,066$      89,732$          24.7% 75.3%
71 06200 SENIOR CENTER 399,175$      94,115$          23.6% 76.4%
72 TOTAL CULTURE/RECREATION 762,241$      183,847$        24.1% 75.9%

700 HOUSING DEVELOPMENT-
73 07100 COUNTY EXTENSION SERVICE 77,678$        4,541$             5.8% 94.2%
74 07410 PLANNING AND ZONING 368,846$      88,270$          23.9% 76.1%
75 TOTAL HOUSING AND DEVELOPMENT 446,524$      92,811$          20.8% 79.2%

59



JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FY2025 1ST QUARTER 

FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

FY 2025 FY 2025 % %
100 GENERAL FUND - BUDGET ACTUAL EXPENDED UNENCUMBERED

DEPT # EXPENDITURES
900 APPROPRIATIONS/CONTINGENCY-

76 572030 DEPT OF FAMILY AND CHILDRENS SERVICES 10,375$            2,594$                25.0% 75.0%
77 572060 CONSERVATION 3,000$              -$                        0.0% 100.0%
78 572070 JC BOARD OF EDUCATION 41,500$            8,003$                19.3% 80.7%
79 572080 PUTNAM-JASPER SUPPORT SERVICES 5,760$              1,440$                25.0% 75.0%
80 572100 AZALEA REGIONAL LIBRARY 103,600$          25,900$             25.0% 75.0%
81 572101 AZALEA REGIONAL LIBRARY - 2% LOST 26,400$            4,722$                17.9% 82.1%
82 572110 GA FORESTRY 15,876$            15,876$             100.0% 0.0%
83 572179 FAMILY CONNECTION 8,500$              2,125$                25.0% 75.0%
84 572190 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 44,000$            11,000$             25.0% 75.0%
85 573000 JCSWA 42,900$            -$                        0.0% 100.0%
86 574000 CITY OF MONTICELLO EXCISE TAX -$                       2,669$                
87 575000 CITY OF SHADY DALE EXCISE TAX -$                       327$                   
88 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS/CONTINGENCY 301,911$          74,656$             24.7% 75.3%

950 COMPONENT UNITS-
89 611200 JASPER COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 72,102$            18,026$             25.0% 75.0%
90 611300 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 107,513$          26,878$             25.0% 75.0%
91 611400 E911 JOINT COUNTY AUTHORITY 449,420$          112,355$           25.0% 75.0%
92 612540 TRANSFER TO LANDFILL 148,915$          24,819$             16.7% 83.3%
93 618000 TRANSFER FROM CURBSIDE (14,102)$           (14,102)$            100.0% 0.0%
94 TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS 763,848$          167,976$           22.0% 78.0%

60



Business Item 10: 

 

Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 

 

Department:   Board of Commissioners 

 

Date:   November 4, 2024 

 

 

Subject: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings As Needed 

   

 

 

Summary:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Background:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Motion: 

 

61


	Insert from: "Agenda Detail 1.1.pdf"
	MergeBookMark
	Border D-Plat


	Insert from: "6099.pdf"
	ARTICLE III. PRIVATE DRIVE SUBDIVISIONS
	Sec. 105-60. Purposes and intent; application of certain uses and structures.
	Sec. 105-61. Property development standards.
	Sec. 105-62. Compliance with other standards required.
	Secs. 105-63—105-82. Reserved.


	Insert from: "2B14.pdf"
	Sec. 119-48. Conventional zoning districts.


